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P-R-O0-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S
9:56 a.m.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Good morning,
ladies and gentlemen. Let me call to order the 9th of
December 2003 public hearing of the Board of Zoning
Adjustment of the District of Columbia.

My name 1is Geoff Griffis. I am the
chairperson.

Joining me today is Ms. Miller.
Representing the Zoning Commission is Mr. May and
representing the National Capital Planning Commission
is Mr. Zaidain.

Copies of today's hearing agenda are
available to you. They are located on the wall as you
entered into the hearing room. You can certainly pick
on up and see where you are on our agenda.

Let me run through a few very important
but quick things. First of all, all public hearings
before the Board of Zoning Adjustment are recorded.
Therefore, we ask several things of you.

First of all, when coming forward to speak
to the Board, you will have needed to £fill out two
witnesses cards. Witness cards are available on the
table you entered into and the table in front. Those

two witness cards go to the recorder who sits to my
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right prior to coming forward.

And when having a seat and making yourself
comfortable, please state your name and address for
the record. You need only do that once and then we
can proceed.

Of course, anything established for the
record for our deliberation needs to be said on the
record and, therefore, needs to be said into a
microphone. That microphone should be on.

The order of procedure for our public
hearing today, special exception and variances will be
first. We'll hear from the applicant. The
presentation of their case and any witnesses that they
will call.

Second, we would hear government reports
such as the Office of Planning's report or any other
government agency that has submitted to the
application.

Third would be a report from the Advisory
Neighborhood Commission.

Fourth would be persons in support of the
application.

Fifth would be persons in opposition of
the application or parties if any are established.

Sixth would be closing remarks Dby the
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applicant.

Cross examination of witnesses is
permitted by the applicant or parties in the case.
The ANC within which the property i1is 1located is
automatically a party in the case and, therefore, can
conduct cross examination.

The record that we establish today will be
closed at the conclusion of the public hearing except
for any material that is specifically requested by the
Board and we will be very specific as to what is to be
submitted and when it is to be submitted into the
Office of Zoning.

Of course, it goes without saying when
that is received, the record would then be finally
closed and no additional information would be accepted
into the record.

The Sunshine Act requires that this Board
conduct all its hearings in the public and before the
public. This Board may, however, consistent with its
rules of procedures and the Sunshine Act, enter into
executive session. Executive sessions are for the
reasons of reviewing the record or deliberating on a
specific case.

The decision of the Board in contested

cases of which special exceptions and variances are --
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in contested cases our deliberation must be based
solely on the record that is created before us today.

So, along with all that information of
getting all the important information into the record,
additionally we would ask that people present today
not engage Board members in conversation so that we do
not give the appearance of receiving information
outside of the official record.

I would ask that everyone turn off any
cell phones or beepers at this time so we don't have
any disruption of the hearing as we proceed and I
believe that after my very good morning to the Office
of Zoning staff that's with us, Ms. Bailey and Mr.
Moy, that we can entertain any preliminary matters.

Preliminary matters are those which relate
to whether a case will or should be heard today such
as requests for a postponement, continuances or
whether proper and adequate notice has been provided
for each case.

If you do not believe the Board should
hear a case on our agenda this morning or you believe
that you are not prepared to proceed with a case, now
would be the time to bring that to the attention of
the Board and you can do so by coming forward and

having a seat at the table.
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Let me ask staff if they are aware of any

preliminary matters for the Board with our morning

agenda.

MS. BAILEY: Mr. Chairman and to all, good
morning.

No, Mr. Chairman, staff has no preliminary
matters.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Very well. Then why
don't we call the first case.

MS. BAILEY: Application Number 17084 of
Christina M. Handley, pursuant to 11 DCMR 3103.2, for
a variance from the lot occupancy requirements under
Section 403, a variance from the rear yard
requirements under Section 404, and a variance from
Subsection 2001.3 from the nonconforming structure
provisions to allow the construction of a deck in the
R-5-B District at premises 1418 Q Street, N.W. The
property is located in Square 209 on Lot 875.

All those wishing to testify, please stand
and raise your right hand to take the oath.

Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the
testimony that you will be giving today will be the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

Thank you and have a seat at the table.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: You just need to
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turn on the microphone which is -- there's a button
right in the bottom. There it is.

MS. HANDLEY: Good morning. My name 1is
Christina Handley. I live at 1418 Q Street, N.W.,
Washington, D.C.

Begin or --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Sure.

MS. HANDLEY: Do -- do you -- okay. So, I
just tell you what I want to do and you'll --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Absolutely. Just
roll with it and we're going to be --

MS. HANDLEY: -- ask the questions.

CHATRPERSON GRIFFIS: -- rude and
interrupt you constantly.

MS. HANDLEY: Okay. Okay. So, my house
on Q Street is -- is the only one that's set back. It
has a rather large front yard. It's -- on -- all on Q
Street between 15th and 14th. They're all row houses.

In the back of my yard, the first floor of

my house is a rental unit. I rent it out. It's a
two-bedroom apartment. I live on the second and third
floors.

In the back of my house, there's a roll-up
garage and that's  where I park my car and

traditionally, I've had to walk out into the alley,
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down the alley, up 15th, and around to the -- around
to the front.

There's some gsafety issues I have with
that having had some bad experiences. So, what I
would like to do is build an entrance into -- from the
back in the second floor, but I want to do it smartly.

I want to build the entrance so that I can walk up a

spiral staircase, have -- have a carport and on top of
that carport, it'll -- it'll be enclosed so the
weather -- because there's a car underneath and then

the top of that will be a deck.

So, my application I -- I talked to an
engineer and got certified plans. Talked to an
architect, showed pictures of how it is now, what I'd
like to do. So, I try to be an thorough as a I can.
Got the lawyer to sign off and explain all the issues
I just mentioned to you, the safety, what I want to
do, and the two options I'm pursuing and -- and I
included that in the application which we can go over.

I have before you.

There's a -- I guess there's a process to
this and you wanted me to obtain support from the ANC,
ny neighborhood commission. So, I talked to them.
They wrote a letter which should have been forwarded

in part of the -- the package.
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I also got 1letters from my neighbors
because we share a property and they support the
activity, too.

And the pictures, what I took of what I

wanted to do, it's a quality project. I don't -- I
think it would, you know, improve the property. I
don't -- I wouldn't do a sloppy job which is sort of,

you know, which is why I took the time, you know, to
have an engineer look at it, have an architect look at
it, tried to preserve 1like, vyou know, right now --
tried to preserve. Talked to the historic
preservation office and because there's some ivy and
it's nice in the city to -- to keep some of the
woodwork and the ivy that's hanging back there.

So -- so, I can go over and explain any
questions vyou might have and the pictures, the
application, I've Jjust Dbasically gone through the
process that you guided me to do and you -- your
representative has come out and also put forward a
letter which they -- I understand my application I
went more towards an extreme application. I could
have applied maybe a lesser stringent --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: -- special wvariance.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.
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MS. HANDLEY: So --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right now you're
coming in for -- for several variances.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Variance, of course,
is a higher threshold of a test for us and -- and as
opposed to a special exception. The Office of
Planning, Mr. Jackson --

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: -- who will present
his report shortly I believe probably talked to you
about reducing the lot occupancy and that would have
brought it into a special exception and a special
exception would essentially have gone into is there
any sort of adverse impact, are you blocking light or
sun.

A variance, of course, is set forward that
there has to be something unique for the property and
I understand vyour submissions -- what vyou've said
today is that you are unique in your sguare and in the
area by the 1large front setback, the larger front
yard, which obviously diminishes the rear -- the rear
yvard and the ability to put structure and park back
there.

The practical difficulty is -- is -- I've

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

12

understood your application and what vyou're saying
today is it's -- directly it's access to your -- to
your residential unit on the second floor.

So, let's go to any sort of questions from
the Board for clarification on what's being proposed
here and open it up in that frame.

I note in your application, you've also
indicated that it will be similar to the -- to the
neighbor's construction. Is that correct?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes, the materials that they
used when I spoke with the engineers, the materials
that they used instead of having bricks, what they
call CMUs, they used a more expensive material, the
steel posts which are 4 by 4.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: So, that's why I -- I showed
the pictures is -- 1is to try to use more efficient
materials because of the space limitations.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. And Jjust
quickly, do you know the -- the -- the reasonings
behind reducing this to 70 percent lot occupancy? I
mean it seems to me it's very close.

MS. HANDLEY: It's actually 70.6. So, for
me to make the change to 70 percent is easy. I just

need to reduce the -- the depth of the deck. Move it
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back a couple of inches and I meet 70 percent.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: So, that in terms of when
they build or execute, it's -- it's just the depth
that I could move in forward --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: -- and it will have gone

below to 70 percent.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: This has a huge
impact for us in terms of how we review this. It's
either a wvariance or a special exception. Well,

frankly, it's a variance for us today.

Let's -- let's go to quick gquestions if
there are any.

Yes, Mr. May.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes, first of all, you
-- you mentioned this neighbor's deck which is the
metal posts and the wood deck. Is that an adjacent
neighbor or is it a few doors down or something like
that?

MS. HANDLEY: A -- a few doors down. I
took those pictures like of the spiral staircase --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: -- the metal -- the prefab.

That's what I'm going to do. The same as his.
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COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay. I just wanted to
see how close that was.

The next thing is what's the -- the -- you
-- the plans that you've given us are plans for a deck
and I'm wondering how carport enters into this?

Is it -- is it a separate structure
underneath this?

MS. HANDLEY: It's the same structure.
The deck is going to provide the covering. Underneath
the deck they'll put the -- a material that -- and the
water will run off of it.

So, it will -- the deck will be covering
and that will provide the enclosed carport.

COMMISSIONER MAY: The deck will be --
will be a --

MS. HANDLEY: Dual purpose.

COMMISSIONER MAY: It -- it will actually
be a waterproof surface. So, it won't be -- there
will no light or no -- no air, no water gets through

the deck surface itself.

MS. HANDLEY: That's my intention and they
say that, you know, the two contractors I spoke with
says yes, you can do that. So, if it rains, the water
doesn't fall --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right.
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MS. HANDLEY: -- go through. They put the
sealant or -- or plastic material. Well, it's not
plastic. It's a -- 1it's a -- 1it's a combination,

synthetic, natural wood material.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: So, that the -- it'll
enclose it.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay. So, 1it'll be --
it'll be --

MS. HANDLEY: And the temperature, the air
will still come from outside.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: But, the water and the snow
will run off.

COMMISSIONER MAY: It'll be sloped and all
that sort of stuff.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: How -- how tall or how
far off the ground will the actual deck surface be?

MS. HANDLEY: I believe 21 feet. The
exact measures are --

COMMISSIONER MAY: It'll be 21 feet off
the ground?

MS. HANDLEY: It will be -- it might be

nineteen, but it'll go to the second floor.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.
MS. HANDLEY: So, let me -- please one
second, I'll answer your question.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: The -- if you look at the
engineering, it says 20 by 20 by 12. So, vyes, the
height will be -- of the poles will be about 20. So,

it's going to be about 18 feet, maybe 19 or 20 because
of -- that's where the second floor is.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Twenty by -- where is
-- I'm sorry. Where is 20 by --

MS. HANDLEY: I'm sorry. I'm looking at
the -- the engineering design.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: And the pole right here says
20 by 20 by 12.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Twenty inch by 20 inch

by 12.

MS. HANDLEY: By 12. So, that would --

COMMISSIONER MAY: That's a concrete
footing.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Yes, that's your
footing.

COMMISSIONER MAY: That's the -- that's

the dimension of the --
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MS. HANDLEY: The concrete --

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- of the foundation

for the pole.
MS. HANDLEY: Oh.
CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: It's
square 12 feet deep --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

a 20 by 20

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: -- 12 inches deep.

MS. HANDLEY: Okay. I know -- hold -- I

know when we measured, we measured --
COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay.

case, it's going to -- it's going to --

Well, in any

MS. HANDLEY: It about 19 feet.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay.
that frankly is high.

MS. HANDLEY: Okay.

I -- I think

COMMISSIONER MAY: But, the -- the point
I'm getting at is that it's going to be -- I mean
typically a -- a garage or carport is going to be in

the neighborhood of, you know, 9 or 10 feet above

ground.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: And so, you're going to
be many feet above that. I had

something like that.
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MS. HANDLEY: Okay.

COMMISSIONER MAY: And with -- the net
affect of that is if it's not enclosed on the sides,
is that your car is still going to get rained on.
It's still going to get snowed on and you're still
going to have the potential for people to climb over
it. You know, somebody could drive up, hop over the
wall or whatever. So, are you doing -- are -- are you
intending to enclose it any further in any way?
That's what I'm -- that's what the basic question is
really.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes, I would. Yes, I would.

I -- my -- because the walls right now --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: -- there's a brick wall --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: -- and there's the woodwork
there and on the other side, there's also a brick
wall.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes, your property line
is enclosed. 1Is that correct? You can't --

MS. HANDLEY: On the sides. So, the -- it
will preclude from facing out on the left-hand side.
No wind and snow would get in there because the

neighbor's brick wall and the wood is -- 1is on the
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left. 1I'll show you the -- the picture. This -- this
is the left-hand side. So, the deck would be right --
like okay. This is the left-hand side.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes. Right.

MS. HANDLEY: So -- so, my -- the -- this
would be --

COMMISSIONER MAY: It would be above the
window?

MS. HANDLEY: That would be right above --
right -- probably like at the top of this woodwork.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right. Okay. No, I
understand that. What I'm -- it would still be --

you'd still have --

MS. HANDLEY: But, I would 1like enclose
it.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- above the opening --
like you -- do you have a roll-up door now?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay. And that roll-up
door is 8/9/10 feet off the ground. Right?

MS. HANDLEY: About nine.

COMMISSIONER MAY: So, then above the
roll-up door there is going to be?

MS. HANDLEY: A wall.

COMMISSIONER MAY: A wall.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

20

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Made of?

MS. HANDLEY: Of the -- the material to
build the -- the deck. 1It's -- it's a -- it's a wood
-- combination wood and synthetic. It's call Trex.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Trex.

MS. HANDLEY: Trex.

COMMISSTIONER MAY: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: So, 1t's a combination of
wood and synthetic.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: That's a typical --

COMMISSIONER MAY: I'm familiar with the
-- the material.

MS. HANDLEY: Okay.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay. That's -- I'm
asking all these questions because it's not --

MS. HANDLEY: Of course.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- clear from here and
-- and --

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- dit's -- it -- I
think it does factor into how this is -- would be
perceived --

MS. HANDLEY: Okay.
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the -- the variances.
Let me look here.
MS. HANDLEY: And
the -- that --
side is --

the condos.
COMMISSIONER MAY:
MS. HANDLEY: So,
of the alley.

COMMISSIONER MAY:

MS. HANDLEY:

is someone's apartment.

Across

21

-- 1in terms of -- of

Now --

I -- I would need to put

that deck wall because on the other

They're building

Yes.

that's on the other side

Across the alley.

the alley is the

other home and there's large windows there and that's

going to be someone's condo. So, for privacy, is why
I would use the Trex, the wall, to go all the way
around --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: --

All the way around. So, you
COMMISSIONER MAY:

from the first floor --
MS. HANDLEY:
COMMISSIONER MAY:

out over your car right now --

MS. HANDLEY:

Yes.

Yes.

like if I'm looking out.

So, when you look out

-- window that looks
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COMMISSIONER MAY: -- you're going to see
-- you're -- you're not going to have any -- you're
going to be looking into a room basically. You'll be

looking into the carport.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: And it's -- the carport
itself is going to be the width of your property and
it's going to be 15 -- 19 feet tall.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: And it's going to be

completely enclosed and weatherproof or --

MS. HANDLEY: I can't say completely.
There will still be the elements, but not -- I mean my
-- the -- the point --

COMMISSIONER MAY: But, it will be --
MS. HANDLEY: At least weather resistant.
COMMISSIONER MAY: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: I can't, you know, there's

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right. Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: -- the most part there's --
COMMISSIONER MAY: All right. The --

MS. HANDLEY: -- no -- no rain.
COMMISSIONER MAY: All right. I guess one

of the things we have to look at is the affect on
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light and air and privacy for your adjacent neighbors
and that's another reason why I have questions about
the height. Because when -- the way you describe it
here with the one picture where we're looking at your
neighbor's 1lovely roof deck structure thing, vyou're
going to be above that. So -- and from your deck,
you'll be able to look into your neighbor's yard and

-- and on the other side where you're enclosing the

court, vyou'll be looking in -- you'll -- vyou'll be
able to overlook the neighbor's yard as well. Is that
right? I -- I can't tell as well from the pictures.

MS. HANDLEY: I can now.

COMMISSIONER MAY: I understand.

MS. HANDLEY: On the -- on my left-hand
side, this picture right here, he has -- he has -- my
neighbor right here has a little bit of roof, but you
can see he has his house, a garden, and then the deck
in the back.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: So, on the second floor of
my apartment, I can see over them.

COMMISSTIONER MAY: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: The one I took the pictures,
he can do to all of us. He can look like you said.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right.
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MS. HANDLEY: He can look.

COMMISSIONER MAY: The -- but, the other
side of your property where you have the court and the
-- the doorway to your -- to the apartment.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY : You're proposing
decking over that entire court as well and what's --
what 1is your neighbor's property? I can't tell from
the pictures. All I see is --

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- green. Is that
green on a wall or is that green over -- is that just
trees? 1Is that the actual yard trees?

MS. HANDLEY: No, that's ivy hanging on
woodwork.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay. So, there's an
actual yard --

MS. HANDLEY: And that will stay.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- next to your
property or next to your court?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes, actually, there is a
deck with a garage underneath is or a carport.

COMMISSIONER MAY: All the way out at the
alley?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.
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COMMISSIONER MAY: And then what about
closer to the house? 1Is it -- is it -- is the garage
the entire length of your house back there?

MS. HANDLEY: No, in my neighbor's yard,
there's a -- a garden between the house and the
garage.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right. Okay . So,
you'd be overlooking some of that garden?

MS. HANDLEY: Actually, I -- I have a view

now. I wouldn't afterwards.

COMMISSIONER MAY: I'm not asking about
now. I'm asking about the deck. You -- you -- that's
what --

MS. HANDLEY: No, because it would be

enclosed. I wouldn't see into that.

COMMISSIONER MAY: If you were on your
deck, you would be able to see?

MS. HANDLEY: No, I would not.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Why not? Oh, because

you're --

MS. HANDLEY: Because the walls are
enclosed. So, I no longer see into my neighbor's
houses.

COMMISSIONER MAY: So, you're going to
build a -- a wall above -- on the deck itself.
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MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSTIONER MAY: A wall above that.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: So, that you won't be
able to see out over that.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Which is another thing
that's just not shown in the plan. Okay.

Did you look into -- it seems that the
primary rationale for this is so that you can get to
your apartment on the second floor.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Did you 1look at any
less involved scheme for essentially just putting a
stairway and a landing up to a door opening on that
floor or did you -- 1is what's driving this more
covering the parking than getting the access?

MS. HANDLEY: I would say that --

COMMISSIONER MAY: It's probably not an
either or. I guess the question is did you look at
anything that was less involved?

MS. HANDLEY: At first, I thought because
of affordability, I would just take a door and do the
entrance.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.
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MS. HANDLEY: And then my mother who's in
real estate said well, vyou know, what are your
intentions long term for the home.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: And so, she says and -- and
what's the affordability of -- of Dbuilding the
carport, the -- the deck and so, we went through the
whole -- the whole issues of privacy which is -- and

-- and the parking and the safety and the entrance and
affordability and it -- and by the amount of money
that I would spend --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: -- 1is almost half just to
drop the door and put the spiral staircase and go
down. So, investment-wise --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: -- I might as well do it --
do the others.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes. Okay. All right.

Well, that's it for my questions.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Would -- and taking
that to its logical conclusion is your expanding your
outdoor space?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: So, you actually are

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

28

able to have some of what 1is often required of
residential buildings that's not in a commercial zone,
but outside recreation space. Okay.

Other questions? Clarifications?

Very well. Let's move on then and we'll
just -- is there anything else you'd like to add? You
have plenty of time, but we're going to run through
all the other government reports. We're going to have
OP present their report. I'll note the Advisory
Neighborhood Commission's letter that is submitted in.

It's Exhibit Number 23 and then I'll turn it back
over to vyou 1f you want to Jjust conclude with
anything.

You had indicated quickly that you have
spoken to your neighbors on each side.

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: And they're in
support?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes, I had -- they had a
letter and I sent it. I mailed it to the person. I
don't have her name. And it should be in -- in -- in
the package. It was an addition and I fax it to her
with pictures and -- and she said that she was adding
it to my file and both John and Scott Robinson lives

to my left and John on the right and they said that
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they both supported it. I went over the plans and --
and Scott and his partner are architects. So, he --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Well, we won't hold
it against them.

COMMISSIONER MAY: He's an architect?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes, he's an architect.

COMMISSIONER MAY: No. No, he's an
architect.

MS. HANDLEY: Oh, you are.

COMMISSIONER MAY: So, don't -- don't --
don't take it as a slight.

MS. HANDLEY: Oh, okay. Okay. I'll be
sure to tell him you said that, Mr. Griffis.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: All right. I won't
be around for that.

MS. HANDLEY: So, they -- they did -- and
I did speak to her. I took it on face she put it in
the file. I can always fax another copy.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Well, we'll
get that and we'll get it in.

MS. HANDLEY: Okay.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: I mean I think that
-- that clearly -- what Mr. May was going to is just
trying to flush out the entire record of --

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.
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CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: -- what sort of
impacts and clearly they will have understood the
plans and -- and you brought to them. So, let's look
to that letter -- letter.

Why don't we go to Office of Planning and
have -- Mr. Jackson, good morning. Why don't you
present your report?

MR. JACKSON: Good morning. My name's
Arthur Jackson, the D.C. Office of Planning and I will
briefly go through the Office of Planning report and

be available for questions.

If -- I guess the -- give this --
everything I can -- I need to say really is based on
the photographs. So, if you'll turn to the exhibit

that's the photograph aerial of the site, I'll go
through the points that I have to make in my report.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Oh, first, do
you have this report? Have you reviewed the Office of
Planning's report?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes, I have. Yes, I have.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Good.

MS. HANDLEY: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay.

MR. JACKSON: The site is a interior 1lot

located on -- on Q Street and as you can see from the
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aerial, I'm hoping you have the color version because
the black and white's pretty bad, the -- this one --
this is one of the few buildings that's set back on --
along Q Street and it sits back a substantial amount,
nearly 23 feet.

Also, note that there's an L-shaped court
in the rear of -- an L -- the building has an L-shape
which forms a court along the left property line and,
of course, the rear yard is close to the alley.

Also, note that the distance according to
the GIS from the rear of the parking around to the
front of the building is 530 feet.

Essentially, the applicant has come before
us because they want to do two -- accomplish two ends.

One is two provide a garage or carport to enclosed
their car and the other is to provide a -- to be an
access to their floor apartment in that the first
floor is not accessible from the parking area because
it's occupied by a tenant.

The applicant's -- the property is zoned
R-5-B and as such, there are a number of definitions
and specifics that we -- and, of course, =zoning
regulations apply here.

One of the first is that we're looking at

just what the applicant's planning to do. It seems
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that what they're proposing in the rear vyard it
actually seems to be more similar -- more similar to a
carport or garage.

Also, the applicant wants to place a
stairwell to the second floor in the enclosed court.
However, there's no provision for that. This type of
encroachment. So, that -- that's another issue that

has to be addressed.

And finally, the applicant 1is -- was
proposed -- proposing to increase the lot occupancy to
over 70 percent. In discussions with the applicant,

they agreed that they would make modifications
necessary to reduce the lot occupancy to -- to -- from
71 to 71 -- 70 percent so that this could be -- a
portion of this relief could be dealt with as a
special exception.

Therefore, based on that analysis, it was
determined that variances were required to allow the
circular stair and carport to encroach into the open
court and to locate a carport less than 12 feet from
the alley centerline and also a special exception
would be required to -- for the allowable occupancy
increase to 70 percent.

The applicant explain their reasons in a

letter dated 7 September 2003 and in submitting their

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

33

-- their application, they provided two options for

providing access to the second floor -- floor
dwelling. The two options involved removing an
existing window and continuing it to the -- to the

floor plate in order to access the dwelling from the
court and also creating a new door in the wall facing
the rear yard which would be -- which was more major
construction. The applicant indicated a preference
for the latter, but the cost may force them to use the
former.

But, their proposal appears to allow them
to have access to either one of the options. So, it's
really a more conservative approach to approve this
proposal with regard what her ultimate ends is -- ends
are.

In the analysis, we looked at what the --
how the two variances could be granted and considered
the extraordinary existing conditions on site. The --
the lot has a -- a slightly irregular shape and is one
of only two residential properties on the square that
has a front yard setback. This is -- this is by far
the most severe front yard setback.

The minimum nine-foot depth for the rear
yvard requires the applicant to park parallel with the

alley. So, 1n other words, instead of parking
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perpendicular to the dwelling, in doing that that
really requires that the rear yard remain free of any
other encumbrances so maneuvering can OCCUr.

Because -- because of that, a lot of the
outdoor storage areas that would normally be in a rear
yard such as for -- for trash and other things that
you store in your back vyard, kind of creep into the
court.

The practical difficulty is that the --
the applicant currently experiencing -- 1is traveling
through some distance through areas they consider
unsafe to access their dwelling. They'd like to -- to
solve that problem.

The most probable location for
ingress/egress due to the probable -- to the cost of

doing this project would appear to be in the rear

yards. That's in the -- in the rear court. Because
the rear yard is occupied by -- is used for parking.
To eliminate the -- to do otherwise would require

elimination of the on-site parking resource which is a
great potential.

The other issue has to do with the depth
of the rear yard. The zoning regulations allow for a
carport, but it -- it normally requires that the

carport be set back 12 feet from the center line of
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the alley. The alley's only 10-feet wide and only a
9-foot alley. That doesn't quite add up.

So, we did contact the Department of
Transportation to ask them specifically if that
created any concerns on their part and they had no
concerns.

The -- and particularly since the -- the
applicant has apparently been successful in parking
their car within the roll-up gate, a little more
discussion about the actual site.

What the applicant has is a free-standing
roll-up gate that's next to the property line and I
think if you 1look in the photographs that were
submitted, there's a photograph of a neighboring
property which shows the type of gate I'm talking
about. So, again, this 1is Jjust a free standing
structure on the property 1line, but it occupies the
entire site.

This -- again, these photographs were of a
neighboring property. Correct?

MS. HANDLEY: Right.

MR. JACKSON: Okay. In our discussions
and when I visited the site and -- and looked out the
window, what I did see was that her ground floor --

the elevation of the second floor is -- is above the
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adjacent garages and the deck's on top of those
garages.

So, at this point, that would -- I should
reiterate that the applicant can see into the -- the
neighbor's rear vyard and into and over onto the
adjacent structures on the neighboring garages from

her kitchen windows.

And the -- so, that the staff in -- in
reviewing -- well, that was an important point to --
to -- to recognize particularly with regard to having
to erect a deck that would -- or erect a -- put a

carport with a deck topping that would meet the same

-- be the same ground floor elevation as the second

floor.

Now, we didn't have an actual dimension
for that, but the -- I think the applicant said that
the -- the wall -- the brick wall along the side and

the existing roll-up door are 9 feet and I guess her
floor is slightly above that roll-up door, her ground
floor level, but, anyway, briefly, I'll go through
this.

So -- so, basically, we have two
circumstances that we felt needed to be addressed with
the -- the variance.

One was the 1locating -- extending the
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carport into the open court and locating the circular
stair in the -- in the open court and based on the
circumstances surrounding this applicant, we concluded
that these wvariances could be granted without
impairing the -- the intent, purpose or integrity of
the =zoning map as it 1is embodied in the zoning
regulations and map.

With regard to Section 223, here we're
looking at the special exception for the lot occupancy
only and we went through those -- those provisions and
we felt that overall the application meets those
standards with regard to not -- because it does not

increase the visibility of any vyard area except in

terms of the -- I guess the yard to the east and --
and that would -- that would be the dwelling -- okay.
Coming down the alley, the first garage on the -- on
the right that already has a screen -- a screen
surrounding its -- the second floor deck on top of

that garage and thereby this application should not
impact that.

So, based on those -- the only concern
that our staff has is that we did not -- we know that
this cannot be approved unless the amount of the
variance for the lot occupancy was reduced to 70

percent and we communicated that -- communicated that
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to the applicant and the applicant was agreeable to
make that reduction.

So, based on those findings, OP concludes
this application does meet the requirements for
Section 223 subject to the revised plans being
submitted that reflect a reduced lot occupancy and
reviewing the competency plan, we found no conflict
with the competency plan.

In reviewing the file, we found that ANC-
2F reviewed the application and recommended approval.

The State Historic Preservation staff reviewed the
application. Have no expressed any concerns and the

-- the request was forwarded to the Department of
Transportation, the Department -- the Fire and
Metropolitan Police Departments and no concerns were

-- were raised.

As a result, Office of Planning recommends
approval of variances to allow the circular stair and
carport to encroach in the rear yard and -- and to
locate a carport less than 12 feet from the center
line of the existing alley.

Staff also recommends of the special
exception for the increased lot occupancy subject to
-- to the public record being -- initial submission in

the public record that would consist of a revised plan
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that shows a reduced garage -- garage, carport, and
deck.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you very much,
Mr. Jackson.

Did you not review the application for a
variance from the lot occupancy then?

MR. JACKSON: No, I did not.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: Could -- could I add? 1It's
not from 70 to 71 percent. It's from 70 to 70.1
percent. So --

MR. JACKSON: Oh, okay.

MS. HANDLEY: -- it -- it's -- if you look
at the actual -- when I went to the permit office and
-- and I -- and I spoke with D.C. government

representatives that had me fill this out, this form
you have --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: -- 1s -- is the maximum lot
is 60 percent provided by proposed construction is
70.1 and is was --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: 70.1.

MS. HANDLEY: -- actually 70.06, but I
assumed you would want me to round up. So, 1f -- so,
it's not a -- so, that 10 percent that lot occupancy
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existing condition I'm grandfathered there. I mean
that's why I'm saying --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: -- that's easily negotiable.

It's --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: No, we understand
that. A good sander will take about that .06 --

MS. HANDLEY: So, if --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: -- lot occupancy
off.

MS. HANDLEY: -- you know, if you need me
to do it from .1 to .0, I will do that.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: To address your concern, Mr.
May, and I --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Actually, hold on a
second.

MS. HANDLEY: Oh, I'm sorry.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: In terms of
procedure here, you have cross examination privileges
now of Office of Planning. So, 1f you have any
questions of Office of Planning, now, would be the
time.

MS. HANDLEY: No, thank you, Mr. Jackson.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Then we're
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going to have Board gquestions of Office of Planning
and then we'll get back to your conclusions.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: I just have a question
just for Mr. Jackson, but anyone can answer it.

Is the alley one-way or is it two-way?

MR. JACKSON: It's not signed either way.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: It's not signed either
way. Okay.

MR. JACKSON: But, it's only --

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Construction
happening on that alley?

MR. JACKSON: No, actually, most of the
construction work is coming off of I think it's Q
Street. No not Q Street. O Street to the south.

However, there is debris that's falling
out of a -- out of a building onto the alley.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: All right.

MR. JACKSON: But, they have -- but, the
alley's so narrow they're not reusing --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: There's a 1lot of
work that's happening in that --

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Another reason the alley
is dangerous.

MR. JACKSON: Well, it's not some place to

be particularly around that big hole next door.
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MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Yes.

MR. JACKSON: But, the --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay.

MR. JACKSON: -- the alley's not being
used for any construction activity at this time.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: You guys keep saying
that, you're going to make me ask for projects lists.

But, okay, just make sure I understand the
regulation regarding the carport because I've never --
I've never been exposed to that one before.

It has to be 12 feet from the center line
of the alley. So --

MR. JACKSON: Yes, I think the -- but, the
logic behind that I believe would be that your carport
would be far enough away from the alley so that you
could -- you could turn into it. Assuming you had a
12-foot alley --

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Yes.

MR. JACKSON: -- you'd be able to make a
turn into it.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Right. Oh, okay.

MR. JACKSON: And actually have a -- well,
almost --

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Okay.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: If you look at the
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regulations, they usually don't want a structure in an
alley closer than 2 feet. I mean it clearly is for
maneuverability. It also gives an --

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Right. No, I understand

that. I -- I guess just my question is I'm trying to
understand if -- it's my understanding that -- that
the practical difficulty in that instance is -- is the
-- the smaller dimensions of the alley. Is that
correct?

MR. JACKSON: Well, it's the small of the

alley and the rear yard.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: To allow -- and the rear
yard. Okay.

MR. JACKSON: If the rear vyard -- in
looking back at the aerial that I -- I highlighted.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Yes, the aerial is
impressive.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Yes, it is.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: It's almost as if
that house slipped.

MR. JACKSON: Well, the applicant had an
interesting story to tell about that. That -- that --
the actual reason they sit this thing back 1like that
and she may want to go -- go through that, but it's --

it's unusual in that it is so close to the alley and
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obviously wasn't designed to provide much of a rear
yard that -- that you would normally find in a
residence.

So, they only have 9 feet to work with and
the neighboring property that has -- has the garage,
you'll note that it is sitting much further back from
the alley and, in fact, it's far back enough that it
can have a garden and a back yard and -- and have a
deck.

So, it's -- again it's -- it goes to the
uniqueness of this property.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Right. So, the whole --
this whole entire space here is -- 1is the front yard
structure?

MR. JACKSON: Yes, it's --

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Okay.

MR. JACKSON: -- mostly pebbles and a --
and a fountain and that's it.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Okay. Well, it's almost
like the building was design oriented to the alley as
oppose to the -- to the main street, but --

MS. HANDLEY: Well, that was a horse
stable.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: It was a horse stable?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes, it was to be a horse
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doctor and that was his stables when it was originally
built as I understand.

MR. JACKSON: So, we were surmising that
the front of the building was where the horses would
graze and they stay in the alley -- stay in the -- in
the -- in the building on the property which is a barn
-- which would have been a barn back then and then the
-- the rear yard wasn't of any use because it wasn't
really a residence. But, that's -- just a summation.

MEMBER ZAIDAIN: Right. Right. Okay.
Thank vyou.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Fascinating. Other
questions?

COMMISSIONER MAY: I have a question.
Exactly how deep is the rear yard?

MR. JACKSON: Nine feet.

COMMISSIONER MAY: It's 9 feet?

MR. JACKSON: Estimate 9 feet.

MS. HANDLEY: Actually, I measured it.
It's 10.6.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Well, that's the --

MR. JACKSON: 10.6. Sorry.

MS. HANDLEY: Just a minor --

COMMISSIONER MAY: That's my question is
that -- your drawings show 10.6
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MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSTIONER MAY: And there are a lot of
things that call it nine and I see it on the -- how
did I -- how is it on the survey?

MS. HANDLEY: I believe the survey's the
same 10.

COMMISSIONER MAY: See, if it's -- if it's
23 feet -- if the front yard is 23 feet and the house
is 68 feet, then that does leave only 9 feet.

MS. HANDLEY: This was -- Mr. Permit had
driven this, but I know I measured it and from my
house to that alley line is 10.6 inches. So, this --
this -- I'm --

MR. JACKSON: Yes, I Jjust wanted to
highlight --

MS. HANDLEY: -- I probably went off this.

I'm sorry.

MR. JACKSON: -- maybe -- maybe what the
difference is that if you measure from the house to
the roll-up door, it's 9 feet. But, if you measure
from the house to the actual alley limit, is 10 feet.

Because I -- that's what I --
COMMISSIONER MAY: Right. I mean --
MS. HANDLEY: Oh, okay.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- going from that is
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actually what you should be doing. I mean that's the
official document --

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- that says how far it

is unless you want to have it resurveyed.

MS. HANDLEY: No, it -- it --

COMMISSIONER MAY: But, if -- you know, if
that --

MS. HANDLEY: This right there that's --
that's when -- when I got the original survey and --
and --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: -- I went to Mr. Permit and
said, you know, they were kind of a courier for me.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.

MS. HANDLEY: And signed it and he said
well, you need to make some, you know, they want you
to add some drawings on here.

COMMISSIONER MAY: But, did you add the
dimensions that are on there?

MS. HANDLEY: No, I did not. Mr. Permit
did when I was going through the process.

COMMISSIONER MAY : So, the 68-foot
dimension was added by Mr. Permit? I'm not familiar

with Mr. Permit.
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MS. HANDLEY: Oh, no, the original typed
on. The -- I'm talking about this --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: -- this writing right here.

COMMISSTIONER MAY: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: This -- this existing 9-foot
brick retaining --

COMMISSIONER MAY: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: -- wall.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay. And that's what
-- what I'm --

MS. HANDLEY: And it's actually ten.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Okay. What I'm -- what
I'm getting at is that the -- if you had a -- if you
have a 68-foot deep building and you have a 23-foot
front yard that I've seen elsewhere in print, then
that leaves 9 feet on the over 100 foot lot depth and
whatever we approve here, should be limited to what's
-- what --

MS. HANDLEY: Oh.

COMMISSIONER MAY: -- is allowed on your
property.

MS. HANDLEY: You're right. My rear yard
10 foot 6 inches deep that's what I'm talking about.

That there.
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COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes, 1t may not be
something that we can --

MS. HANDLEY: I think -- I think I
measured -- I think I -- when I included some of the
-- because it's an L-shape.

COMMISSIONER MAY : Yes, well, it's
something that will need to be clear and correct on
the drawings and I think you're going to have to move
that back line anyway to deal with the 70 percent. It
just may be that it has to move from what's on the
drawings. Move back, you know, a foot and a half or a
foot and seven inches. Because what's shown on the
drawings here is 9 plus 1 foot 6.

Do -- do you disagree that it's -- that's
what the -- the drawing says, 9 plus 10 foot 67

I don't know. I mean it may be that the
neighboring properties are over built into the alley.

That happens.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Good.

MS. HANDLEY: No, see you're -- the --

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: I -- I think we
ought to refer to the miscellaneous note number one,
all dimensions shown are approximate, to be field
verified and 1leave it at that. I think it'll be

clarity when we get to more conclusions --
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MS. HANDLEY: Okay.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: -- and directions
from the Board.

That being said, do we have any other
questions of the Office of Planning? Does the
applicant have any other additional cross examination
of Office of Planning?

MS. HANDLEY: No, thank you very much.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Good. Let's move on
then. I don't have any other government reports
pertaining to this application. Office of Planning as
indicated they referred it to the other agencies that
would have referred this.

So, going to the Advisory Neighborhood
Commission 2F which did submit a letter, Exhibit
Number 23, and did they say what a quorum was? Well,
in any case, there was a quorum present and they do
support the application.

COMMISSIONER MAY: It 1looks 1like there
were six commissioners. So.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right. You know, we
have very strict regulations of what they're suppose
to tell us.

COMMISSIONER MAY: A -- a quorum must --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Going on from
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that, then I don't have any other attendants. Is
anyone here to testify in Application 17084 either for
or against the application? Then come forward now.
I'm not seeing indications of anyone giving testimony.

Ms. Handley, why don't we turn to you for
any closing remarks that vyou might have for the
Board's consideration.

MS. HANDLEY: Just a -- to -- well, the
only closing remark was -- is after -- is if I were

allowed to build this is no, I wouldn't infringe upon

my neighbor's view. I sense that that was a concern
that you had. Because I -- and -- and I didn't put on
there that yes, I would -- it would be enclosed on top
of the carport in the deck. So, that was Jjust to

address your concern, Mr. May.

The -- the existing 9-foot brick retaining
wall, those are the -- on the document we just -- we
were looking at this, the plat. The 9 foot there 1is
referencing the height of the brick walls that are
there on either side not the length, but the
measurements I would need a couple of minutes to go
over those measurements which I could do, but just for
purposes of closing up, those are my only remarks.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Thank you very much.

Okay. I think it's -- yes, Mr. May. I think it's
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appropriate then to take this up in a motion for
further deliberation if there is any attendant to this
application. Mr. May.

COMMISSIONER MAY: Mr. Chairman, before we
consider a motion in this case for a decision today, I
do feel that we need to have some better documentation
of what is actually proposed here.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Oh, actually what T
had anticipated is if a motion was to pass is that we
would require prior to issuance of an order the
documentation that reflected several things. First of
all, the extent to the property 1line that is a
buildable area. Second would be showing that the --
the proposed construction would meet the 70 percent
requirement and not exceed that.

Those are the only aspects that I believe
are in question at this point.

COMMISSIONER MAY: I would disagree. I
think that -- that I have some very serious concerns
about the nature of the construction that's being
proposed, the height and the wall construction and
these privacy walls and everything else and without a
better picture of -- of what's involved --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: But, let me -- let

me try and understand your concern when vyou say
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construction.
COMMISSIONER MAY: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: What does that mean?
I mean we don't -- we don't have any authority or
jurisdiction over how it's built.

COMMISSIONER MAY: I'm sorry. Don't --
don't mean to imply that I'm concerned about the --
the nature of the construction specifically. It's
just that I don't -- what we see on these drawings
does not actually represent what we would see.

It shows a deck. It doesn't show anything
about any kind of enclosing walls for the carport
either on the front or the sides and I would like to
see those before we make a decision about it. Because
I'm not sure that what's being proposed we can
adequately judge for the impact on the neighborhood
and the neighboring properties and the light and air
and all those other considerations that we need to
make.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Ms. Handley, do you
have architectural drawings of this? Did an architect
draw off anything?

MS. HANDLEY: Just to, no. Just a -- a
kind of draft and then I gave it -- and then that's

when he said you need to have an engineer do it.
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Because I showed him -- I went with the architect and
said look at the pictures. What I showed you. It's a
steel post --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY : -- cedar wood, cedar
enclosed. That's what I want and then they said well,
use Trex. It's a better material.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay. Mr. May's
bringing up the point of --

MS. HANDLEY: But, that's it.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: -- if I can take it
to another point is when you talked to your neighbors,
were they aware, first of all, that you were going to
have a solid wall on each of the adjacent sides? Did
they understand what -- that type of enclosement you
were going to have on the patio or the deck?

MS. HANDLEY: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: How would they have
known that?

MS. HANDLEY: Because -- okay. I see what
you're saying. The original -- when I took kind of --
when I described what I wanted to do and we walked and
I took my neighbors and we walked down -- two streets
down and said this is what we're going to do and they

came 1into my house and I showed them. We had the
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architectural drawings general. They weren't done to
scale, but that's when he said, you know, get the
engineer to do it because of the materials issue.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Right.

MS. HANDLEY: So, I didn't attached
those --

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: So, you have
architectural sketches of a concept.

MS. HANDLEY: Sketches.

CHATIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Is that correct?

MS. HANDLEY: Of a concept. Yes, I do.

CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Okay.

MS. HANDLEY: And I can provide those to

you.
CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: You what?
MS. HANDLEY: I could send those to you.
CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Others? Opinions?
We have two choices now. We're going to take up a

motion and proceed with this or we can set this for a
decision making with submissions required and that
would be further documentation of the proposed work.
COMMISSTIONER MAY: I would prefer that we
set the decision maker.
CHAIRPERSON GRIFFIS: Who knew -- who knew

you were --
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COMMISSIONER MAY: I -- I do think this is
a circumstance where we need to -- to understand
carefully what's -- what's being proposed here and I

think that, you know, while ther